O J o U w N

WWWWwwWwoBoNDoNoDNNODNNNNDR R B R Bl
AW N R O WO®-TJo U0 WNREOWO®-Jo U WN R~ O W

35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

434.977.2970 &
434.293.8858 K@
www.rivanna.org &

695 Moores Creek Lane | Charlottesville, Virginia 22902-9016

RWSA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Regular Meeting
December 17, 2024

A regular meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority (RWSA) Board of Directors was
held on Tuesday, December 17, 2024, at 2:15 p.m. at the Rivanna Administration Building, (2nd
Floor Conference Room), 695 Moores Creek Lane, Charlottesville, VA 22902.

Board Members Present: Mike Gaffney, Jeff Richardson, Sam Sanders, Ann Mallek, Brian
Pinkston, Quin Lunsford, Lauren Hildebrand.

Board Members Absent: None

Rivanna Staff Present: Bill Mawyer, David Tungate, Lonnie Wood, Jennifer Whitaker, Betsy
Nemeth, Scott Schiller, Austin Marrs, Victoria Fort, Dyon Vega, Leah Beard, Annie West,
Deborah Anama, Jacob Woodson.

Attorney(s) Present: Micah Schwartz.

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Gaffney convened the December 17, 2024, regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority at 2:15 p.m.

2. AGENDA APPROVAL
There were no comments or questions on the agenda.

Ms. Mallek moved the Board to adopt the agenda. Mr. Sanders seconded the motion, which
carried unanimously (7-0).

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING
a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting on November 19, 2024
AS AMENDED: Line 620 - Change “State Water Control Board” to “State Water
Commission”

Mr. Gaffney stated that Ms. Mallek had requested one change. He stated that in the new agenda,
line 620 should be changed from "State Water Control Board" to "State Water Commission".

Ms. Mallek moved the Board to adopt the minutes from the meeting held on November 19,
2024, as amended. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (7-0).

4. RECOGNITIONS
There were none.

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Mr. Mawyer stated that they were pleased to wrap up a successful year and looked forward to
2025. He stated that they had faced several challenges early in 2024, including submergence of



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92

the Rivanna Pump Station and deflation at the Sugar Hollow Reservoir bladder. He stated that
staff, along with their contractors and consultants, had worked hard to overcome these issues.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were now about to begin a new project at Sugar Hollow, which Ms.
Fort would likely discuss in more detail next month. He stated that the goal of this project was to
install new connections to improve the piping system for the pneumatic system. He stated that
previously, they had used a rubber sleeve, which separated in January when temperatures were
very low. He stated that to prevent this, they would be installing welded flange connections that
were bolted together, ensuring a more reliable system.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had a good year in 2024 and appreciated the support they received
from the Board. He stated that he would also like to take a moment to acknowledge the
reappointment by the County and the City of Mike Gaffney, who would serve another two-year
term.

Mr. Gaffney stated that he believed it would be his 23rd and 24th year.

Mr. Mawyer stated that as part of the strategic plan priority of employee development, he would
like to recognize several staff members who have obtained training certifications. He stated that
in the mechanical and electrical trades, David Heintges, Richard McElfresh, Perry Herring,
Tyrone Hughes, Garrett Carver, and Matt Walker all completed training at ValleyVoTech. He
stated that they would like to recognize their efforts.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the entire management team participated in a diversity awareness
workshop last week, led by a facilitator from the Diversity Training Group. He stated that the
three-hour session was informative and effective, and he believed they all learned a great deal.
He stated that he attended the Virginia Biosolids Council annual meeting in Richmond last week,
where they shared concerns about proposed regulations on PFAS and their impact on the land
application of biosolids.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they shipped their biosolids to Waverly, Virginia, where they were made
into compost and were not land applied. He stated that the Biosolids Council was closely
monitoring legislation at both the federal and local levels due to the ongoing PFAS issue in
drinking water, wastewater, and biosolids.

Mr. Mawyer stated that Brian Haney, Wastewater Manager, gave a tour of the plant to students
from Monticello High School, and Betsy Nemeth, Director of Administration and
Communications, had been coordinating and presenting topics to the UVA School of Public
Health. He stated that they were interested in seeing the work the students would produce in this
regard.

Mr. Mawyer stated the “Imagine a Day Without Water Art Contest” was wrapping up with
ACSA and the City. He stated the winning submissions included work from students in various
grades and schools throughout the area. He stated that the students demonstrated exceptional
skill and artistry in their descriptions of the topic related to water. He stated that the theme was,
"What’s your drop in the bucket?"

December 17, 2024



93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

Mr. Mawyer stated that they continued to monitor drought conditions, and this map shown was
the latest update from the state on December 15. He stated that the red boxes caught his
attention, indicating an emergency warning for precipitation. He stated that although they had
had received some recent precipitation, they were hoping it would continue in the coming weeks.
He stated that groundwater levels were at normal levels, and the state reported that stream flows
were also within normal ranges.

Mr. Mawyer stated that reservoir levels were under a watch status, but the Authority's reservoirs
were in good shape. He stated that Ragged Mountain was down about a foot and a half and Sugar
Hollow was intentionally lowered by five feet to facilitate a piping project inside the dam. He
stated that they deflated the bladder to access the pneumatic controls in the gatehouse. He stated
that the reservoir water quantity and quality were otherwise in good shape.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had a productive meeting with Ann Wall, Deputy County
Executive, to discuss the Upper Schenks Branch sewer pipe project. He stated they discussed
whether the County would grant an easement for the pipeline or if they would have to install the
pipeline in Mcintire Road. He stated that they updated Ms. Wall on the project's status and
provided her with the data about the project.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they lowered the water level at Sugar Hollow by five feet. He stated they
met with the informal subcommittee to review the FY2026-2030 Capital Improvement Plan,
which proposed 76 projects worth approximately $523 million over the next five years. He stated
that they could imagine that most of those dollars were related to the water supply projects,
including piping from Ragged Mountain to Observatory, Observatory to Free Bridge through the
Central Water Line, and then from Rivanna to Ragged Mountain, as the larger of the projects. He
stated that they were implementing some of the changes suggested by the committee and planned
to introduce it to the Board in February.

Mr. Mawyer stated that as of yesterday, they were notified by the Virginia Department of Health
that they would receive an additional $1 million for emerging contaminants removal, thanks to
the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law funding. He stated that this funding supported the Crozet Water
Treatment Plant GAC additions project, and over the last several years, they had received a total
of $7.24 million through this program.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were excited to receive these funds this year, designated as FY25 by
the state, and they were also applying for more funds next year. He stated that this program
dedicated a portion of the funds to disadvantaged communities and the other portion to non-
disadvantaged communities, and they had been successful in the latter category.

Ms. Mallek asked if staff would brief the Board or send them an email with a brief update on the
status of the Mechums Pump Station prior to the February CIP discussion. She stated that she
had previously assumed it was included in the CIP, but she may be incorrect. She stated that she
would appreciate an update on the recent activity at the pump station, particularly the high
velocity coming through the small gap in the dam, which appeared to be causing erosion along
the banks downstream.

December 17, 2024



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156

157

158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183

Mr. Mawyer stated that it was in the CIP for demolition, but they had removed it because they
had the potential to use it for water supplies benefiting Crozet. He stated that they were currently
exploring this option.

Ms. Mallek stated that if the timeline was 2060, then something needed to be done in the
meantime to get the obstructions out. She stated that it was also helping to fill up South Fork.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had coordinated with Dr. Palmer this week and provided her with
the necessary information regarding that topic. He stated that she had also raised the same
question.
6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

Matters Not Listed for Public Hearing on the Agenda
There were none.

7. RESPONSES TO PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no comments from the public, therefore, there were no responses.

8. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Staff Report on Finance

b. Staff Report on Operations

c. Staff Report on CIP Projects

d. Staff Report on Administration and Communications
e. Staff Report on Wholesale Metering

f.  Staff Report on Drought Monitoring

g. Approval of Engineering Services — South Rivanna Reservoir Intake and Pump
Station: Design, Bidding, And Construction Phase Services — Kimley-Horn Engineers

h. Amendment of the Capital Improvement Plan FY 25-29 — South Rivanna Water
Treatment Plant — Sodium Permanganate System Improvement

Ms. Mallek moved the Board to adopt the consent agenda. Mr. Sanders seconded the
motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

9. OTHER BUSINESS

a. Presentation and Vote on Acceptance: FY 24 Audit Report
Matthew McLearen, CPA, CFE, Managing Director, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates

December 17, 2024



184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228

Matt McLearen, Managing Director of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, stated that he
would present the results of the FY24 audit and answer any questions the Board may
have about the audit or the audit process. He stated that before he reviewed the Annual
Financial Report, he would like to briefly review a separately issued letter that addressed
communication with those charged with governance. He stated that this letter
highlighted key responsibilities under the audit, including testing documents, controls,
and financial statements.

Mr. McLearen stated that the auditee, the Authority, also had a responsibility to present
records sufficient for the audit and maintain internal controls sufficient for audit
purposes. He stated that the next item discussed in this letter was accounting estimates.
He stated that these were a normal part of an audited financial report and included
estimates such as the depreciable lives of long-term assets, infrastructure, buildings,
vehicles, and other items. He stated that these estimates were used in computed
depreciation expense.

Mr. McLearen stated that the second most significant estimate was related to pension
and OPEB liabilities, which were measured annually, and the actuaries provided a
document included in the annual financial report. He stated that the next item discussed
was any difficulties encountered during the audit process. He stated that he was pleased
to report that they encountered no difficulties in forming the audit.

Mr. McLearen stated that corrected and uncorrected misstatements were a normal part of
the audit process, and they were required to disclose any uncorrected misstatements. He
stated that those were audit adjustments proposed to the finance staff and management.
He stated that they reported that there were no uncorrected misstatements. He stated that
finally, they were required to disclose that management had sought a second opinion,
such as a consultation with other auditors. He stated that they had no knowledge of
management seeking a second opinion regarding the FY 24 audit.

Mr. McLearen stated that the document contained two reports with the CPA firm's
letterhead. He stated that the first was the independent auditors’ report. He stated that the
independent auditors' report was the official opinion on the accuracy and material
accuracy of the financial statements. He stated that it was issued with an unmodified or
clean opinion, without modification, for the FY24 audit.

Mr. McLearen stated the statement of net position was Exhibit 1, and it spanned two
pages and listed the equity or net position for the Authority, which was $183 million as
of June 30, 2024. He stated that the second statement was the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in the net position, similar to an income statement. He stated that
it reported the increase or decrease in the net position number, which was $10.2 million
for the Authority for the year ending June 30, 2024.

Mc. McLearen stated that the third and final financial statement was the statement of
cash flows. He stated that while there was a lot of information on this page, he would

December 17, 2024



229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274

like them to focus on the $46.9 million figure, which was the ending net cash position
for the Authority as of June 30, 2024.

Mr. Mawyer asked if that included the cash that was borrowed.

Mr. McLearen stated that was correct. He stated that upon closer inspection, one would
see that there was actually a decrease in cash. He stated that this was a normal
occurrence when borrowing cash to fund capital expenditures. He stated that the
decrease in cash of $14.1 million was largely driven by the increase in capital additions,
which included the capital projects. He stated that the number was $23.7 million for the
year ending of June 30, 2024, representing the expenditure of that cash, including the
bond proceeds that were accumulated for that purpose, as reported on the statement.

Mr. McLearen stated that the second and final report was the independent auditor's
report on internal controls. He stated that this report documented and disclosed
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that were discovered during the audit
process. He stated that as part of the audit process, they were required to test those
controls to report any significant deficiencies or failures in the internal control structure.
He stated that they had not identified any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
during the FY24 audit.

Mr. Pinkston asked how many years the firm had been in operation and how long Mr.
McLearen had been an auditor.

Mr. McLearen stated that he had been an auditor for maybe 12 years.

Mr. Gaffney stated that the firm had been in operation for at least 75 years.
Mr. McLearen stated that the firm had been in operation since the early 1950s.
Mr. Gaffney asked if there was a motion to accept the financial report.

Ms. Mallek moved the Board to adopt the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
for FY 2024. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

Presentation: Rivanna Conservation Alliance's Rivanna Restoration Projects and Water
Quality Monitoring

Lisa Wittenborn, Ph.D., Executive Director

Claire Sanderson, Ph.D., Monitoring Program Manager

Lisa Wittenborn, Executive Director of Rivanna Conservation Alliance (RCA), stated
that RCA was formed in 2016 through the merger of Streamwatch and Rivanna
Conservation Society. She stated that their mission was to work with the community to
conserve the Rivanna River and its tributaries through monitoring, restoration,
education, and advocacy. She stated that as a relatively small staff of five, they were
able to accomplish a lot due to their strong partnerships in the community, including

December 17, 2024



275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320

with the Authority. She stated they also had a large and engaged group of volunteers
who helped them in all of their program areas.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they focused on six main areas, and one highlight was their
education program, which took every sixth grader in the County and every seventh
grader in the City on watershed field trips. She stated that these trips not only taught
students about the importance of the Rivanna River, but also introduced them to various
career paths in the field. She stated that they also organized stream cleanups. She stated
that these events allowed people to explore and appreciate the river as an important part
of their community.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they also hosted various community events, such as the
Rivanna River Fest, and engaged in advocacy. She stated that before she dove into their
current restoration projects, she would like to highlight some of the significant benefits
that came from these initiatives. She stated that the removal of the dam at the North Fork
Water Treatment Plant was currently being considered or in conversation. She stated she
wanted to show them what happened when the Woolen Mills Dam was removed.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that in 2006, a graduate student at UVA and other state officials
conducted a fish survey. She stated that this study used a series of dots shown on the
map, with the size of the dot representing the number of fish of a particular species. She
stated that the results showed six species and 67 fish when the dam was still in place.
She stated that a follow-up survey in 2019 revealed a significant difference, with 32
species of fish and over 1,000 individual fish. She stated that the removal of the dam
made a substantial impact on water quality and habitat in the river.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that her conversation with a colleague in 2019, while standing in
Darden Towe Park, sparked an idea. She stated that they noticed the exposed sewer line
and the severe erosion on the riverbank. She stated that the RWSA team quickly
stabilized the area, but they did not want the entire riverbank to resemble riprap. She
stated that they decided to conduct a study to determine the worst areas of erosion in the
river corridor, so they could address potential problems proactively.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that the study's results, funded by a grant from the National Fish
and Wildlife Foundation, showed five miles of the river with relative erosion rates along
those stretches. She stated that as part of the grant, they proposed an area for restoration.
She stated that they examined various factors that could impact the success and benefits
of the restoration project, and they decided that Riverview Park would be the best
location for them to propose a project.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that Riverview Park was facing significant erosion. She stated
that the restoration of this area would provide numerous benefits for water quality and
habitat stabilization. She stated that they chose Riverview Park for its community
benefits, as it was the most used park in the City and a beloved destination with many
amenities, including a playground and the Rivanna trail. She stated that the park was
also the City's only public access point to the river, making it a crucial location for their

December 17, 2024



321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366

community. She stated that they decided to propose a restoration project there and were
able to secure a planning grant to explore the feasibility of the project.

Ms. Wittenborn stated they worked with Ecosystem Services, a firm that conducted
hydrology, hydraulic analysis, and surveys to determine the most effective type of
restoration that would be stable in the long term. She stated that they wanted to ensure
that their proposed restoration would be effective and stable. She stated that while
Ecosystem Services focused on the technical aspects, RCA handled community
engagement, as this project was their initiative and not mandated by the City.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they conducted public meetings, distributed forms for
community input, and engaged with hundreds of people through online forums and in-
person events. She stated that the overwhelming response was positive, with the
community expressing a strong desire to see the project move forward. She stated they
incorporated the community's input and the engineering work to create a proposed
design for the restoration project.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they were fortunate to receive a $500,000 grant from
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation for implementation. She stated that when they
submitted the proposal, the total project cost was slightly over $800,000, but since then,
the costs had increased significantly due to the rising construction costs. She stated they
had already secured private foundation funding, and they had a large grant proposal
pending with the state's local stormwater assistance fund, a CIP request submitted to the
City through the Parks Department, and they were also seeking contributions from
ACSA and RWSA.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that one of the reasons this project would be of interest to RWSA
is that it involved stormwater outfall restoration. She stated that the erosion was
dramatic. She stated that the channel was very deep and wide, and every time the river
came up, it ate away another chunk of it. She stated that this was quickly moving
towards the ACSA line and then the RWSA sewer line. She stated that as part of their
project, they aimed to fill this channel and stabilize it with step pools to protect the
existing infrastructure.

Ms. Wittenborn stated another aspect of the project was to improve access for the
community. She stated that currently, there was only one set of stairs that everyone had
to use to get in and out of the river, which could be quite hazardous, especially during
the summer with boats and children. She stated that to address this, they planned to
create a low slope access area with a nice path down, which would serve as a floodplain
bench. She stated this area would allow the river to expand while also providing a safe
access point for the community. She stated that the boat ramp would be relocated further
downstream, and they would also install more informal access points upstream.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that a significant part of the project would be replanting native
vegetation, which would help regrade the banks and hold them in place long-term. She
stated that they were excited about the plan, and construction was expected to start about

December 17, 2024



367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412

a year from now. She stated that she would briefly summarize their current project
focused on forest health in the Rivanna River Corridor. She stated that despite efforts to
plant new trees, they were allowing existing trees to be taken down by invasive vines.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that to address this, they had formed a partnership with various
organizations and conducted assessments of 134 acres of forest in three parks:
Riverview, Darden Towe, and Pen Park. She stated that they had identified areas with
high levels of invasive cover and native trees, with the goal of preserving the canopy.
She stated that they had compiled data, prioritized these areas, and hired a contractor to
begin invasive management in January.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they would be backfilling with new trees where necessary.
She stated that this project involved significant volunteer engagement and was expected
to have a long-term impact. She stated that for reference, she included some invasive
cover maps, which showed the extent of vine coverage in Riverview Park. She stated
that these images demonstrated the prevalence of invasive species, with nearly all trees
in certain areas covered in vines.

Ms. Mallek stated that she was wondering, for plants like native grapevines, if it was
possible to simply cut the root and stem off at the ground, allowing the plant to die, or if
the roots needed to be completely ripped out. She stated that that was probably a
considerable amount of what was in those trees.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they were attempting to minimize the impact on the native
species as much as possible. She stated that their focus was on eradicating the invasive
species, and many of these would return if herbicide was not applied to the cut end of
the stump. She stated that this required a precise application of herbicide on the cut
stem, and this work was not done by volunteers. She stated that they were working with
Parks Department staff to ensure that this treatment was applied correctly.

Mr. Gaffney asked if it worked for Russian olive.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that it did work for autumn olive. She stated that their first
volunteer workday in Riverview was focused on autumn olive removal.

Claire Sanderson, Director of Monitoring at RCA, stated that she would like to briefly
discuss their water quality monitoring programs. She stated that they had two main
volunteer-supported programs: one for bacteria and one for benthic or biological
samples. She stated that approximately 80 trained volunteers contributed to collecting
data across both programs annually.

Ms. Sanderson stated that both programs had been certified as level three by VDEQ), the
highest level of certification for a volunteer-supported program. She stated that this
certification ensured that the data collected by their volunteers was of the highest
quality, comparable to data collected by VDEQ itself. She stated that as a result, they
can utilize this data for essential environmental decision-making purposes, such as

December 17, 2024



413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458

identifying impaired waters, evaluating Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs), and
informing local partners and community members.

Ms. Sanderson stated that the bacteria monitoring program has been in operation for the
past 12 years, with volunteers collecting water samples at 22 sites in and around
Charlottesville. She stated that they test for E. coli and turbidity to determine the
recreational water quality for these sites. She stated that to achieve this, they had three
different sampling schedules. She stated that first, they collect samples once a month
from March to November, providing a general overview of the situation. She stated that
they can then conduct additional monitoring if necessary.

Ms. Sanderson stated that in the spring, nine potential recreational sites were sampled
weekly for 10 weeks to see if they meet Virginia's water quality standards for recreation.
She stated that in the summer, they performed weekly tests at three high recreational
sites, Darden Towe Park, Riverview Park, and the Palmyra boat launch. She stated this
was done in partnership with the James River Watch. She stated that the data was posted
on the James River Watch's website, as well as the swim guide app, allowing the public
to make informed decisions about recreation in the water.

Ms. Sanderson stated that they also conducted extra monitoring when needed and source
tracking when they saw unusually high levels of E. coli. She stated that in the stream
health report, they publish the results every year, and they report on the data from the
previous year. She stated that the 2023 bacteria monitoring results were available as
shown. She stated that a map of all 22 sites was provided, color-coded according to the
percentage of samples with E. coli levels under Virginia's water quality standard for
recreation, which was 410 counts of E. coli per 100 ml of water.

Ms. Sanderson stated that for example, the three highly popular sites had high
percentages of samples meeting the recreational water quality standard. She stated that
the numbers were higher than they were in 2022. She stated that the biological
monitoring program had been in operation since 2002, with volunteers collecting benthic
macroinvertebrates. She stated that these organisms had different levels of tolerance to
pollution, and by collecting and identifying them, they could determine the water quality
at each location.

Ms. Sanderson stated that they had 50 long-term monitoring sites throughout the
Rivanna River watershed, which were depicted on the map as pink hexagons. She stated
that they sampled twice yearly, once in the spring and once in the fall. She stated that
due to the variability in benthic scores caused by weather and seasonal fluctuations,
when analyzing the results for the report, they considered the last three years of data.
She stated that the results focused on the benthic results from 2021 to 2023. She stated
that the map displayed all the long-term monitoring sites, which were color-coded
according to the stream health score. She stated that sites with scores above 60 were
considered to be meeting Virginia's water quality standard for aquatic life.

Mr. Pinkston asked what the major causes for low scores were.

December 17, 2024



459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504

Ms. Sanderson stated that there were numerous factors at play. She stated that increasing
sediment could significantly impact the organisms, particularly those with sensitive gills
that could become clogged. She stated that pH changes, temperature fluctuations, and
exposure to pesticides, herbicides, and other pollutants also contributed to the issue. She
stated that variations in weather and rainfall patterns affected them.

Ms. Sanderson stated that in this year's report, 70% of their sites failed to meet Virginia's
water quality standard for aquatic life, which may seem alarming, but it represented a
4% improvement from last year. She stated that further information related to the report
was available on their website.

Ms. Mallek asked, when in the small percentage where it failed, because 87% passed,
what kind of notice was provided to the public to prevent people from using the river for
recreation.

Ms. Sanderson stated that they did not typically make public announcements. She stated
that the river usually had high E. coli levels after heavy storms. She stated that they
instructed people on their website and elsewhere to not use the river after storms and to
wait 48 to 72 hours after heavy rain. She stated that when they experienced elevated
levels that persisted, they worked closely with the City. She stated that if the site was
within the City's jurisdiction, they would issue public notices, and the City would also
issue their own notice as well.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that at all river access points, they had a kiosk with a QR code
that directed users to their current bacteria results page. She stated that this allowed
visitors to view the most recent results.

Ms. Mallek left the meeting at 2:57 p.m.

Mr. Gaffney stated that at Moores Creek, they were proud of the quality of water that
came out of the plant. He stated that the readings from the two reports were concerning,
and he noticed that Pollock's Branch and Lodge Creek, which were upstream, also had
low readings. He stated that he was wondering if the issues contributing to Moores
Creek's low readings were related to broader issues in the City and the County.

Ms. Sanderson stated that the Moores Creek site was generally considered good. She
stated that it tended to exceed the 410 level during heavy rainfalls. She stated that it may
also be affected by rainfall from other locations. She stated that they had been
experiencing ongoing issues at Pollock’s Branch, which had resulted in elevated E. coli
levels. She stated that overall, the site was fairly good, but heavy rainfall could cause it
to spike and lead to exceedances.

Mr. Mawyer asked if they sampled on a regular schedule or in relation to the river's
quality level. He asked if they would wait if there was heavy rainfall even if it was the
sample day.

December 17, 2024



505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550

Ms. Sanderson stated that if that was their sample day, they would still sample if it was
safe to do so and if the volunteers felt comfortable doing so. She stated that if not, they
would either wait a day or skip the sampling altogether.

Mr. Mawyer asked if they waited until normal water clarity to sample.
Ms. Sanderson stated that they did not.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that the revised Virginia Water Quality Standard required taking
a sample on a regular schedule, every week, regardless of the conditions.

Mr. Pinkston asked if they covered the entire Rivanna watershed.

Ms. Sanderson stated that they did. She stated that it was approximately 766 square
miles, which was their area of work.

Mr. Pinkston asked if there were any partner agencies in the adjacent areas.

Ms. Sanderson stated that they partnered with several organizations. She stated that there
were numerous water quality monitoring groups throughout Virginia. She stated that
they stood out, however, as the only group to hold both level three certification for their
benthic and bacteria monitoring. She stated that in contrast, many groups that analyzed
benthic data typically held level two certification.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that if one examined a map of Virginia, it was possible to identify
the Rivanna watershed due to the high concentration of monitoring sites they had. She
stated that their partners at the VDEQ informed them that this concentration of sites
enabled them to concentrate their efforts in other areas where they did not have similar
groups.

Mr. Pinkston stated that they also mentioned the possibility that the Authority might
partially fund the work at Riverview Park.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that was the hope. She stated that when they submitted the grant
proposal for the implementation grant two years ago, RWSA returned a letter stating it
would support the project, but the letter did not include a specific dollar amount.

Mr. Gaffney asked what the Authority's current annual contribution was.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that the Authority contributed $20,000 to support the program
work.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he would like to know if they could provide an estimate of the
additional contribution they would request.

December 17, 2024



551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596

Ms. Wittenborn stated that she believed they had initially estimated $20,000. She stated
that ACSA was also asked to make an in-kind contribution.

Mr. Pinkston asked if the request was enough to cover the project costs.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that it would not be enough if they did not secure additional
funding. She stated that it was a complex puzzle of bringing all the pieces together.

Mr. Pinkston stated he thought it would be beneficial to have conversations outside of
this meeting about the numbers they were discussing. He stated he believed the numbers
seemed relatively low.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were currently working on the budget, and he would
discuss an appropriate amount with Ms. Wittenborn and bring it up for discussion in
March.

Mr. Pinkston stated that this project seemed to have the potential to unlock opportunities
for many different people. He stated that he believed they could contribute more than the
proposed amount.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that she hoped that the City budget would be announced soon.
Mr. Gaffney stated that he believed the City could increase its contribution.

Mr. Pinkston stated that he did not disagree.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that they should hear about the largest remaining pot of money,
the Stormwater Local Assistance Fund, which was expected to be announced in
February. She stated that if they received CIP funds, they would be in a good financial
position, unless construction costs increased significantly this year.

Mr. Sanders asked if the request would come through the Parks Department.

Ms. Wittenborn stated that it was a $250,000 request through the Parks Department.
Presentation and Vote to Consider Award of Construction Contract and Amendment to
the CIP for the Crozet Wastewater Pump Stations Repairs Project — Waco, Inc.

Dyon Vega, P.E., RWSA Civil Engineer

Dyon Vega, Civil Engineer, stated that he was presenting on the Crozet wastewater
station repairs project for the construction award and CIP amendment. He stated that the
Crozet service area flowed by gravity to Crozet Pump Station 4 and was then pumped to

the urban area, where it flowed by gravity and was treated at Moores Creek.

Mr. Vega stated that the pump stations, constructed in the 1980s, had reached their
useful life. He stated that along with the pump stations, they would be replacing the

December 17, 2024



597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642

pumps, including 11 new pumps. He stated that at Pump Station 4, they had a flow
equalization tank that dampened peak flows to the urban service area during high storm
events. He stated that the Crozet flow equalization tank, which was recently constructed,
served to trim peak flows to the urban service area. He stated that during a storm event,
it filled up and, after the storm, it drained and flushed automatically. He stated that it
held 1 million gallons of wastewater, and it was designed to handle a two-year storm
event.

Mr. Pinkston asked if the tank was filled by pump or gravity.

Mr. Vega stated that it was filled by pump. He stated that it was equipped with two
pumps that could fill the tank and also convey wastewater downstream. He stated that
the current budget for the project was $10.9 million. He stated that the engineer's
estimated construction cost was $7.8 million, and the only bidder came in at $10.3
million. He stated that they had discussions with the contractor to reduce the price, and
they were able to reduce the cost by $760,000.

Mr. Vega stated that the modifications and cost-saving measures they implemented
included the unique design of Crozet Pump Station 3, which resembled a chicken coop.
He stated that unlike the other pump stations, this pump station was designed differently
at the request of the original property owner. He stated that they were able to eliminate
the enclosure, saving a significant amount of money by not replacing it. He stated that
they were also able to reduce the cost of temporary bypass pumping by modifying the
system with the contractor.

Mr. Pinkston stated that the Waco bid included two temporary diesel generators. He
stated that it was unclear whether this was temporary during the construction phase.

Mr. Vega stated that one pump would be used as a temporary bypass pump, and one
pump would be placed on standby in case the primary bypass pump failed. He stated that
these pumps would only be used during the construction process.

Mr. Pinkston stated they would use an electric generator and a diesel generator. He
asked what an electric generator was serving.

Mr. Vega stated that it was an electric pump for the bypass process during construction,
so they were saving on fuel costs.

Mr. Mawyer asked if the pump would use the pump station’s electric service.
Mr. Vega stated that it would use the pump station service.
Mr. Gaffney stated that he had a question regarding the Lickinghole Creek

impoundment. He stated that he did not know if the water level typically got lowered
before a significant storm.

December 17, 2024



643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687

Mr. Mawyer stated that the impoundment was substantially full of silt, but they did not
lower it before a storm. He stated that they had a project in the long-range CIP to dredge
the stormwater impoundment. He stated that the basin was losing capacity, and it was
designed and built to protect the Rivanna River from development when Crozet
expanded.

Mr. Gaffney asked what they would do with the silt.

Jennifer Whitaker, Director of Engineering & Maintenance, stated they would probably
search for a suitable disposal site, similar to some of the investigations they had
conducted for South Fork reservoir many years ago.

Mr. Pinkston stated that they received only one bid. He asked if there was consideration
given to re-bidding the project.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they wanted to complete the work as soon as possible, but they
had conducted a thorough review of the bid totals with the engineer. He stated that they
were able to bring the estimate down to within $1.7 million of their original estimate,
which seemed reasonable compared to pricing received on other recent projects. He
stated that he believed the cost was fair and reasonable.

Mr. Mawyer stated that if a contractor was extremely anxious to be competitive, re-
bidding could potentially lead to a lower bid. He stated that there was also a risk that no
contractors may bid on the project, resulting in a zero-bid scenario.

Mr. Pinkston stated that this aligned with the engineer's opinion.

Mr. Mawyer stated it did. He stated that they were familiar with Waco Construction,
having worked with them previously.

Mr. Pinkston asked if this was only for one pump station.

Mr. Vega stated that it was for all four pump stations in Crozet. He stated that there were
eleven total pumps to be replaced.

Mr. Gaffney stated that ACSA was covering 100% of the costs.

Mr. Mawyer stated that wastewater from Crozet was conveyed to Moores Creek for
treatment through the 4 pump stations. He stated that in the past, when they experienced
odor complaints, the issue was often reported in the valley near the lvy Store. He stated
that they had a turnkey contract in place to address odors, which involved the use of
chemicals to minimize them. He stated that the company monitored the sulfides present
in the wastewater and adjusted the levels with chemicals, including a bioxide chemical,
to reduce odors.

December 17, 2024



688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733

Mr. Richardson moved the Board to authorize the Executive Director to award a
construction contract to Waco Construction Company in the total amount of
$9,583,350 and to approve any change orders to the construction contract as
necessary for the completion of the work, not to exceed 10% of the original
construction contract award. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried
unanimously (6-0). (Ms. Mallek was absent)

Mr. Sanders moved the Board to amend the FY 25 — 29 CIP for the Crozet
Wastewater Pump Station Repairs project to increase the budget by $1,450,000.
This amendment would bring the total budget for the project to $12,350,000. Mr.
Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (6-0). (Ms. Mallek was
absent)

Mr. Richardson left the meeting at 3:15 p.m.

Presentation: Dam Safety Program Update
Victoria Fort, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer

Victoria Fort, Senior Civil Engineer, stated that she would provide an overview of the
Dam Safety Program and its various components and contributors. She stated that after
Hurricane Helene's residual rainfall, the Beaver Creek Reservoir water surface elevation
peaked at more than six feet higher than the normal pool. She stated that the dam was
designed to handle such flows, but it was the highest she had seen the water.

Mr. Mawyer asked what would happen if the water level continued to rise.

Ms. Fort stated that eventually, the water would reach an elevation where it would
activate the auxiliary spillway. She stated that most of the water flowing from the lake
into the stream below passed through a pipe, which was visible along the road. She
stated that the primary spillway was the pipe, and when the capacity of that spillway was
reached and the water continued to rise, the auxiliary spillway came into play to carry
the water around the dam, preventing it from overtopping. She stated that an auxiliary
spillway structure was a safety feature commonly included in earthen dams, and it was
designed to divert water away from the dam.

Ms. Fort stated that looking at the United States as a whole, there were over 92,000
dams, with an average age of more than 60 years, according to a figure from last year.
She stated that as dams aged, they became more prone to safety issues. She stated that in
Virginia, there were approximately 3,700 known dams, with about 1,700 of those
classified as an unknown hazard. She stated this lack of information made it difficult for
the state to understand the potential impacts of dam failures downstream.

Ms. Fort stated that Albemarle County had 240 dams, the highest number in any single
county in the state. She stated that Bedford County also had several dams. She stated
that in Albemarle, there were 20 high-hazard dams, which, if they were to fail, would
result in loss of life. She stated that 118 of the dams in the County were classified as an

December 17, 2024



734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779

unknown hazard potential, making it challenging to assess the downstream risks. She
stated the state was investing significant time and resources into addressing these
concerns, and they hoped to see improvements in these numbers.

Ms. Fort stated that according to the ASDSO Dam Incident Database, there were 31
recorded dam incidents in Virginia since 2019, with 12 of those classified as dam
failures. She stated that these incidents highlighted the need for continued vigilance and
understanding of the hazards associated with dams, particularly in their community. She
stated that dam failures could have catastrophic flooding consequences, including loss of
life and significant economic damage.

Ms. Fort stated one of the most common forms of dam failure was overtopping due to
extreme rainfall. She stated that as storms continued to intensify and become more
frequent, their infrastructure, particularly their dams, became increasingly at risk.

Ms. Fort stated she wanted to discuss dam incidents and the importance of dam safety,
particularly in relation to Rivanna. She stated that as they had previously discussed, in
January, a malfunction of the rubber bladder at the Sugar Hollow Dam had occurred.
She stated that although they were fortunate that there was no major damage
downstream, the potential for injury or loss of life was present. She stated that they
responded quickly, and Albemarle County Fire Rescue and Police also responded
quickly. She stated that to increase the safety of the facility, they were taking several
steps.

Ms. Fort stated that although their facility at Sugar Hollow was in compliance with state
standards and well-maintained, these types of emergency events could still occur. She
stated that being prepared for them was crucial for ensuring public safety. She stated that
in response to the recent failure, they were moving forward with air piping
modifications. She stated that the rubber dam was currently deflated and out of service
until the work was completed in the next few months.

Ms. Fort stated that they were also working on installing additional sensors and had
implemented a number of additional alarms at the facility. She stated that they were
considering the installation of an audible warning system, or siren system, to alert
downstream neighbors who may not have cell service or other means of communication
in the event of a dam emergency. She stated that these measures were aimed at
protecting public safety, building on the lessons learned from the January incident.

Mr. Pinkston asked for clarification about failures from overtopping.

Ms. Fort stated that this was primarily related to earthen dams. She stated that the
Beaver Creek Dam featured an embankment with a pipe through it as its primary
spillway. She stated that there was also an auxiliary spillway or emergency spillway
located to the side, as the last thing they wanted was for the dam to overtop. She stated
that this could lead to erosion and failure. She stated that a rapid increase in water level,
which caused overtopping, was one of the most common forms of failure.

December 17, 2024



780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824

Ms. Fort stated that rainfall that exceeded a dam's design was a common failure point.
She stated that they had seen this at Clover Dam, for example. She stated that in May
2018, the dam overtopped due to a sudden rise in water level, causing erosion. She
stated that another significant event this year was Hurricane Helene, which brought
heavy rainfall to the East Coast, including Virginia. She stated the storm caused
catastrophic flooding, landslides, and widespread damage, affecting several dams in
North Carolina and potentially Tennessee.

Ms. Fort stated that these types of storms did occur in the region, and it was essential for
them to anticipate them, maintain their facilities, and be prepared for emergencies. She
stated that a recent incident in Greene County involved the Greene Mountain Lake Dam,
which was partially breached and was currently under a potential failure watch. She
stated the state was closely monitoring the situation.

Ms. Fort stated that in Virginia, dam safety was overseen by the Department of
Conservation and Recreation (DCR), which ensured that dams had proper and safe
design, construction, operation, and maintenance to protect public safety. She stated that
all dams in Virginia were subject to regulations except for certain situations. She stated
that dams under a certain size were exempt. She stated that dams owned or licensed by
the federal government, such as those regulated by FERC, were exempt from state
regulations. She stated that dams operated for mining, agriculture, or canals were
exempt from any kind of regulation in Virginia. She stated that mining and canals may
fall under different jurisdictions.

Ms. Fort stated she oversaw the dam safety program, but it involved a large team,
including senior management, administration, engineering, operations, maintenance, IT,
and many others who worked daily to ensure their dams were safe. She stated that this
included monitoring them with instrumentation, having professionals inspect them, and
maintaining permitting and regulatory compliance. She stated that they also had internal
dam safety policies, which they updated regularly. She stated that they updated, trained
on, and did exercises for their emergency action plans. She stated that they invested
significant funding in maintaining vegetation at all their facilities, which helped protect
the dams from rodents and root intrusion and allowed for proper inspections and repairs.

Ms. Fort stated that there was also an aspect of public safety and outreach, as they
posted signs at all facilities, ensuring they remained visible and communicated the risks
to the public. She stated they participated in Rivanna Riverfest annually, educating the
public about dam safety and risks. She stated that they completed studies and reports as
needed for regulatory compliance, conducted regular inspections and surveys, and had
operators perform daily safety checks at most facilities.

Ms. Fort stated that they inspected all dams monthly and annually with professional
engineer inspections as required. She stated that many of their dams were monitored
remotely with instrumentation or through site visits on a regular basis. She stated that as

December 17, 2024



825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870

these were drinking water storage facilities, they were an integral part of their daily
operations.

Ms. Fort stated that she had included a list of all their facilities, including RWSA and
RSWA. She stated that they had four high-hazard dams, including the South Rivanna
Dam, currently under the jurisdiction of FERC, the Ragged Mountain Dam, the Sugar
Hollow Dam, and the Beaver Creek Dam. She stated that they had three dams classified
as low hazard, the Totier Creek Dam, the Lickinghole Creek Dam, and the Buck
Mountain Dam.

Ms. Fort stated that they also had three dams that were not subject to state regulation but
were still considered impounding structures, the North Fork Rivanna Low Head Dam,
the Mechums River Low Head Dam, and the lvy SWRC Pond Dam. She stated that the
South Fork Rivanna Dam was currently regulated by FERC, but they were in the process
of transitioning it to state jurisdiction. She stated that they had decommissioned the
hydropower facility, which was built in the 1980s, and they were awaiting final approval
from FERC before transferring it to the state.

Ms. Fort stated that the original dam, constructed in the 1960s, was a 700-foot-long, 54-
foot-tall concrete gravity dam with a full overflow spillway. She stated that it should
have at least a lifespan of 100 years or more. She stated that they maintained the
facilities regularly and performed concrete and steel repairs to address what were mostly
cosmetic issues. She stated that they conducted regular inspections to ensure they
remained safe. She stated that as long as this maintenance continued, it was expected to
meet safety standards for the foreseeable future.

Mr. Pinkston asked how tall the dam was.

Ms. Fort stated that from the top of the crest to the stilling basin, it was about 30 feet.
She stated that when discussing the overall height of a dam, they were referring to the
top of the dam, which was the top of the abutment. She stated that the Sugar Hollow
Dam was similar in this regard. She stated that when talking about the height of the dam,
they were not referring to the spillway, but rather the abutments. She stated that the
height of the dam was the point at which the water would need to rise to start eroding the
earth on either side.

Ms. Fort stated that the Ragged Mountain Dam, built between 2012 and 2014, was an
earth-filled dam that stood 125 feet tall and 785 feet long, making it their largest earthen
dam. She stated that this dam would impound an additional 12 feet of water, which it
was built to accommodate. She stated that the project would move forward next year,
allowing them to store an additional 700 million gallons.

Ms. Fort stated that the Sugar Hollow Dam, built in the 1940s, was upgraded in the late
1990s and early 2000s following significant damage from a 1995 flood. She stated it
was a concrete gravity dam with a rubber crest gate, a five-foot-tall rubber tube that
spanned the top of the dam, allowing them to control the water level behind it. She

December 17, 2024



871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915

stated that the bladder was originally installed in the early 2000s and replaced in 2021.
She stated that the dam was 480 feet long and 96 feet tall.

Ms. Fort stated that the Beaver Creek Dam, the last of their high-hazard dams, was built
in 1963. She stated it was an earth-filled dam, 530 feet long and 60 feet tall, and it also
served as an Albemarle County Park, offering various recreational activities. She stated
that the Browns Gap Turnpike ran along the crest of the dam. She stated that this project
was currently in the design phase for upgrades to the spillway.

Ms. Fort stated the auxiliary spillway played a crucial role in managing water levels in
the reservoir, particularly during heavy rainfall events. She stated that originally built as
a significant hazard dam in the 1960s, the facility had undergone upgrades due to
changes in regulations and development downstream, resulting in it being classified as a
high-hazard dam. She stated that this classification increased the amount of storm runoff
the facility must manage. She stated that the auxiliary spillway was undersized to handle
the full capacity, known as the Probable Maximum Flood (PMF).

Ms. Fort stated that to address this, they planned to fill in the auxiliary spillway and
install a new spillway through the dam. She stated that the new spillway would feature a
labyrinth weir, an accordion-shaped structure that could efficiently manage a large
amount of water with a minimal footprint. She stated that this design would enable them
to quickly release water from the reservoir during heavy rainfall events.

Ms. Fort stated that the project would also involve relocating the raw water pump
station, currently situated at the dam's toe, to a site on the reservoir. She stated that the
Natural Resources Conservation Service was funding 100% of the design for eligible
components of the project, and they planned to apply for funding for construction next
year.

Ms. Fort stated that Totier Creek Dam and Lickinghole Creek Dam were two low-hazard
dams. She stated that Totier Creek Dam was an earth-filled dam constructed in the
1970s, measuring 277 feet in length and 35 feet in height, making it a smaller-scale
structure compared to some of their other earthen dams. She stated the Lickinghole
Creek Dam was built in the 1990s and served as a sediment storage basin within the
South Rivanna River watershed. She stated that it prevented sediment from the Crozet
area from entering the South Rivanna basin. She stated the dam was 458-foot-long and
approximately 32 feet tall.

Mr. Pinkston asked if the whole purpose of the Lickinghole dam was to capture
sediment.

Ms. Fort stated that was correct. She stated the dam did not have a water supply storage
purpose, instead, it protected the water supply by preventing contamination. She stated

that the Buck Mountain Property Dam was classified as a low-hazard dam, built in the

early 1980s, and was acquired by Rivanna as part of the Buck Mountain Property

December 17, 2024



916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961

purchase. She stated it did not provide any water supply function, and it was situated on
property that will eventually be part of any future Buck Mountain Reservoir.

Ms. Fort stated the dam was an earth-filled structure, measuring 190 feet long and 33.5
feet tall. She stated that recent studies revealed that the primary spillway conduit, a pipe
that ran through the dam, had reached the end of its useful life due to significant
corrosion. She stated that as a result, the dam will likely require either extensive repairs
or removal to address these deficiencies. She stated the issue was being programmed
into the CIP, and they will continue to monitor the dam's condition to ensure its
integrity. She stated that if they noticed any degradation in the dam's condition, they will
likely drain the pond until they can secure funding to address the issue.

Ms. Fort stated that the size of the dam impoundment was substantial enough that they
would need to lower the dam height by approximately two-thirds to bring it below
regulatory size. She stated that fortunately, it was considered a low-hazard dam, and
they would not expect any major damage or loss of life in the event of a failure.

Ms. Fort stated that they had three unregulated dams, including the North Rivanna Low
Head Dam, which served as the intake for the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant.
She stated that the plant was slated for decommissioning in the near future, and at the
same time, the dam will be removed. She stated that they were collaborating with the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service on this project, which will take over the design,
permitting, and construction of the dam removal. She stated that this partnership was a
great asset, and they hoped to secure the necessary funding.

Ms. Fort stated that the Ivy SWRC Pond Dam was being upgraded with a dry hydrant,
which provided a fire suppression function. She stated that they had previously lowered
the pond a few years ago to bring it below regulatory size and reduce the potential
impoundment. She stated that the Mechums River Low Head Dam was currently not in
operation for water supply, but it was being kept in place until they determined the
longer-range water supply needs.

Ms. Fort stated that their approach to dam emergencies was to design them with a high
level of conservatism to minimize the potential for failure in emergency situations. Even
though these events were considered low-probability, they could have extremely high
and severe impacts on downstream communities. She stated that potential causes of dam
emergencies and failure included rainfall in excess of what the dam was designed to
handle, material failure, vandalism, or terrorism. She stated that they would also
consider an accident or public safety type event at a dam to be a dam-related emergency.

Ms. Fort stated that the dams were categorized by the severity of the consequences from
their failure, which did not necessarily reflect the dam's condition. She stated that they
used other categories to discuss the condition of a dam.

Ms. Fort stated that a high hazard dam meant a likely loss of life and severe economic
damage. She stated that a significant hazard dam meant potential loss of life, possibly

December 17, 2024



962
963
964
965
966
967
968
969
970
971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984
985
986
987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000
1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007

some economic damage. She stated that a low hazard dam meant no expected loss of
life, no significant economic damage upon failure. She stated that the hazard potential
dictated the design criteria, so the higher the dam's hazard classification, the more water
and severe rainstorm the dam must be designed to handle. She stated that the Beaver
Creek project was an example of a significant hazard dam. She stated that once they
upgraded it, the dam had to be able to handle twice the storm it was originally built for.

Ms. Fort stated she usually included a slide on probable maximum precipitation (PMP),
which was the theoretically greatest depth of precipitation for a given duration that was
physically possible over a particular drainage area at a certain time of year. She stated
that this essentially meant the most rain that an area would ever possibly see if the
meteorological conditions aligned for a perfect storm. She stated that dams in Virginia
with high hazard potential must be designed to pass at least 90% of the flood runoff that
results from the PMP.

Ms. Fort stated that they had internally decided that their dams would pass 100% of the
PMP, allowing for more severe storms in the future and providing a cushion in case
regulations changed. She stated that to give a sense of what a PMP storm actually looks
like, it was tailored to every watershed. She stated that in some watersheds, the PMP
might be 25 inches of rain in 24 hours. She stated that in other areas, it may be in excess
of 30 or 35 inches for a 24-hour period.

Mr. Lunsford asked if the Ragged Mountain PMP would be higher than the South
Rivanna PMP.

Ms. Fort stated that was correct. She stated that South Rivanna was a large watershed, so
a storm would be distributed more widely. She stated that in general, larger watersheds
tended to have smaller rainfall values, whereas smaller watersheds required a storm to
pass directly over them, resulting in higher rainfall amounts.

Ms. Fort stated that for comparison, for the Sugar Hollow watershed, a two-year storm
was approximately 3.6 inches of rain in 24 hours, a 100-year storm was 9.12 inches, and
the PMP was 34 inches. She stated that in the 1960s, Nelson County received over 27
inches of rain overnight from Hurricane Camille, 81% of the PMP. She stated that
Madison County received 25 to 30 inches of rain in 16 hours in 1995, or 86% of the
PMP. She stated that there was a history of extreme rainfall events, which emphasized
the need for preparedness.

Mr. Gaffney asked if those percentages were based on the current PMP.
Ms. Fort stated that they were.
Mr. Gaffney asked if the PMP in the 1960s and 1990s was lower.

Ms. Fort stated that it was likely slightly higher. She stated that a 2015 state study of the
PMP in Virginia found that in some areas, the numbers increased slightly, while in

December 17, 2024



1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1026
1027
1028
1029
1030
1031
1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044
1045
1046
1047
1048
1049
1050
1051
1052

others, they decreased slightly. She stated that in their area, the trend had been a
decrease, which was why their previous design work had been more conservative than it
would have been otherwise. She stated that with the new regulations and the new PMP
study in Virginia, the requirements for designing their dams did not change significantly.
She stated that the study did highlight areas where it increased, such as coastal areas.

Ms. Fort stated that moving on to their dam emergency action plans (EAPS), these were
mandatory for all high-hazard dams in Virginia and served as a set of pre-planned
actions to minimize or alleviate emergency conditions at a dam. She stated that these
plans contained procedures and information on issuing early warning notifications to
minimize loss of life and property damage during an emergency event.

Ms. Fort stated that effective coordination among the Virginia Department of
Emergency Management, local emergency communications center, police, fire rescue,
VDOT, media, local government, and themselves was required. She stated that they
currently maintained EAPs for each of their four high-hazard dams. She stated they were
working on updating them to a format more similar to their regional partners' dams, with
the updated versions expected to be distributed in 2025.

Mr. Sanders asked when the last time they tested the EAPs was.

Ms. Fort stated that they held a tabletop exercise on the Sugar Hollow and Beaver Creek
dams in October, bringing together regional emergency managers, police, fire rescue,
VDOT, ACSA, the City, and other local communication staff, such as Albemarle
County's communication team. She stated that the exercise allowed for a diverse range
of perspectives and ideas to be shared. She stated that they also ran through several
scenarios during the exercise.

Ms. Fort stated that building on this, they planned to conduct a similar activity next fall
for the South Rivanna Dam and the Ragged Mountain Dam. She stated that in addition
to these tabletop exercises, they conducted internal drills. She stated they had
experienced enough significant rainfall in the area that they typically activated at least
one of their EAPs every year. She stated that during Hurricane Helene, they activated
two EAPs due to non-failure type emergencies. She stated this heightened awareness,
allowing them to notify others of the situation and continue monitoring.

Ms. Fort stated the EAPs assigned responsibilities for various parties, and Rivanna was
responsible for assessing and verifying the conditions at the dams. She stated that they
would notify participating emergency management agencies and provide status reports
to control the flow of information and ensure accurate information reached the public.
She stated that if corrective action was needed at the facility, such as building a filter to
prevent further erosion, they would take that action. She stated that once the emergency
had subsided, they would declare it to the community, informing them that the situation
had resolved.

December 17, 2024



1053
1054
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060
1061
1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076
1077
1078
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083
1084
1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090
1091
1092
1093
1094
1095
1096
1097

Ms. Fort stated the role of outside agencies in the EAPs included County and City
governments, fire rescue, VDOT, and other relevant parties. She stated that they would
receive status reports from Rivanna and be responsible for notifying the public. She
stated that they were equipped with the necessary tools, training, and resources, and they
could quickly respond to the situation. She stated that they would coordinate and
conduct evacuations, if necessary, from inundation areas downstream of the dam. She
stated they would provide mutual aid and resources, if requested and able to do so.

Ms. Fort stated that in the event of an evacuation, external agencies would be
responsible for designating shelter locations for families, arranging transportation, and
providing necessary resources. She stated that this would enable Rivanna to focus on the
dam facility. She stated that the EAP notification charts outlined various emergency
scenarios, from non-failure to failure. She stated that each chart explained the
emergency scenario, outlined the necessary steps, and included contact information for
key personnel. She stated that it also included written prompts to ensure clear and
concise communication during emergency situations.

Ms. Fort stated that all EAPs included Dam Breach Inundation Maps, which provided
essential information on what areas would flood, buildings that would be impacted, and
the estimated time it would take for water to reach those areas. She stated the maps
indicated the water surface elevation, including whether roadways were overtopped and
by what amount. She stated this information was particularly valuable for emergency
services, as it enabled them to allocate resources efficiently and identify the time
available for action to protect people downstream of these facilities.

Ms. Fort stated that the CIP had several ongoing dam projects. She stated that recently
completed or underway, they had the hydropower facility decommissioning, which was
now complete and awaiting final approval for transfer to the state jurisdiction. She stated
that they also had the air piping modifications at Sugar Hollow Dam, which were
anticipated to begin next month and were expected to be completed by February or
March.

Ms. Fort stated that in the planning and design phase, they were upgrading the spillway
at Beaver Creek Dam, for which design was currently underway with NRCS funding
and was expected to be completed sometime in the middle of next year. She stated that
they were also conducting inspections and concrete and steel repairs at the facilities,
primarily cosmetic or surface-level repairs to aging concrete. She stated that they were
exploring the implementation of an audible warning system at Sugar Hollow and
potentially other facilities, with the goal of rolling it out as needed.

Ms. Fort stated that they were developing public safety plans and signage designs for
facilities that did not already have them, primarily for public safety purposes. She stated
that the Buck Mountain Property Dam remediation and removal project was scheduled
for the later years of the CIP.

December 17, 2024



1098
1099
1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1113
1114
1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121
1122
1123
1124
1125
1126
1127
1128
1129
1130
1131
1132
1133

1134
1135
1136
1137

Ms. Fort stated that they consistently performed annual maintenance and permitting,
including monthly tree and brush clearing, seasonal clearing of brush and stream
channels, instrumentation maintenance, calibration, and remote monitoring. She stated
that staff dedicated significant time to ensuring these facilities could be monitored
remotely. She stated that they had an EAP tabletop exercise planned for 2025 for the
Ragged Mountain and South Rivanna dams, which would allow them to practice
implementing the EAPs for those facilities.

Mr. Sanders asked if Rivanna would host the EOC during an emergency.

Ms. Fort stated that it would most likely be hosted by the jurisdiction where the
emergency was occurring. She stated that depending on the situation, they might want to
be stationed close to the dam, which would influence the location of their setup.

Mr. Pinkston asked where the EAPs were kept.

Ms. Fort stated that they had digital copies and physical copies, which they distributed to
everyone on the call list.

Mr. Pinkston asked if the University of Virginia was included.
Ms. Fort stated that they were included where appropriate.

10. OTHER ITEMS FROM BOARD/STAFF NOT ON AGENDA
There were no items to discuss.

11. CLOSED MEETING
There was no reason for a closed meeting.

12. ADJOURNMENT
At 3:51 p.m., Mr. Sanders moved the Board to adjourn the meeting of the Rivanna Water

and Sewer Authority. Ms. Hildebrand seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (5-
0). (Ms. Mallek and Mr. Richardson were absent)

/’Q\, L4 J\A\

Mr. Sﬁmuel Sanders
Secretary-Treasurer

Respectfully submitted,

wag *‘:'mf

December 17, 2024





